
3225 MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 226 

BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSEITS 02630 

(508) 362-3828 • Fax (508) 362-3136 • www.capecodcomm ission.org 

CA PE COD 
COMMISSION 

Minut es 

Meetin g 
Cape Cod Colnmi ss ion 

Fil'st Dis tl'ict Cou rU1ouse • Asse mbl y of De legates Chamb e1·s 
3195 Main Stree t, Barnstab le, MA 02630 

J uly 6, 20 17 

The meeting was convened at 3:00 p.m., and the Roll Call was recorded as follows: 

Town Member Present 

Barnstable Royden Richardson v 
Bourne Richard Conron v 
B1·ewster Elizabeth Taylor v 
Chatham Michael Skelley v 
Dennis Richard Roy v 
Eastham Joy Brookshire v 
Falmouth Charles M cCaffrey Absent 
Harwich .Jacqueline Etslen v 
Mashpee :Ernest Virgilio v' 
Orlean s Len Short v 
Provincetown Vacant Vacant 
Sandwich Harold Mitchell v (left at ,3:47 p.m.) 
Truro Kevin Grunwald Absent 
Wellfleet Roger Putnam v 
Yarmouth John McCormack, Jr. v 
County Commissioner Mary Pat Flynn Absent 
Minority Repre se ntut ive ,John Harris Absent 
Native Amer ican Rep. David Weeden v 
Govern or's Appointe e Michael Max im v 



The meeting of the Cape Cod Commission was called lo order 011 Thursday, July 6, 20 17 at 3 :05 p,m. in lhe First Districl 
Courthouso1 Assembly of Delegates Chambers, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA. Roll was called and a quorum 
established, 

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN/ VOTES: 
Approval of Minutes: The minutes of the June 8, 20 17 Commission Meeting were approved with 11 votes in favorand two 
abstet1llons (Joy Rrookshire und Richard Roy), 

Public Hear ing: Cape Cod Potato Chip Factory Renovation & Expansion #L RJ 7008 
Followit1g presentations, public testimony and disc11ssio11 on the Development of Rcgiomtl llnpacl Scoping upplicution 
submitted by S-L Snacks MA, LLC for the redevelopment of its existing Cape Cod Potato Chip manufacturing facility and 
site al 60 Breed's Hill Road in Hyunnis, MA, the Commission voted unanimously to close the public hearing, adopt the 
Developmen1 of Regional Impact Scoping decision, and approve the project subject to the conditions in said decision. 

Public .Hellring: Grce11side Office Pi,r!< #l,R.16021 
Following presentations, public testimony and discussion on the Limited Development of Regional Impact application 
s1,1bmitted by J, Bruce MacGregor, Tru~tee, Island Sl•n No!llince Trust, for the Grccnsido Office Park redevelopment project 
that proposes demolition of lhe existing buildings and structures and construction of two office buildings 1111d site 
lrnprovomonts at IO Attucks Lane in Hyannis, MA, the Commission voted unanimously to close the public hearing, adopt the 
Limited Development of Regional Impact dccit;io11, and .ipprovc Lite project subject to the conditions in suid decision, 

Public Meeting: Dollar General J,;astllam #OR.17013 
ro t lowing presentations, public testimony and discussion, the full Commission deliberated on the Discretion(lry Referral 
submitted by the Town of Eastham Board of Selectmen for review as a Development of Regional Impact under the Regional 
Policy Pion issue areas of land use, economic development, water resources, trnnsportation and heritage 
preservation/community character for the proposal by Lisciotti Development/ Eastham, LLC to develop an approximately 
9, I 00 squurc foot Dollur Genera! retuil store ut 46 15 State Highway in Eastham, MA. Following deliberation, with 12 
members voting, the Commission voted to accept the Discl'etionary Referral from the Town of Eastham for Dovclop11101H of 
Regional lmpact review in said Regional rolicy Plan issue areas by a roll call vote with 9 votes in favor and 3 votes opposed: 
Royden Richardson-ye~; Richard Co11ro11-yes; Elii ob\lth Taylor-yes; Miehucl Skelley-no; Richard Roy-yes; Joy Brookshire­
yes; Jackie E1sten-yes; Ernest Virgilio-no; Len Short-yes; Roger Putnam-no; Jack McCormack-yes; and David Weeden-yes. 

• MINUTES 
The n,inutes <J f the June 8, 2017 Corr11nh,sio11 Mce;:ling were reviewed. Len Short moved to approve U1e minutes tmd Roger 
Putnam seconded the motion. A vote called on the motion to approve the minutes passed with 11 votes in favor and two 
abstentions (Joy Brookshire and Richard Roy). 

11 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 'S REPORT 
Executive Director Paul Niedzwiecki said due to the le11gthy meeting agenda, he woulcl 1101 be p,·oviding II repoi-t. 

Ill CAPE COD POTATO CHIP FACTORY RENOVATI ON&. EXPANSION #LR17008 
Chair Harold Mitchell opened the public hearing al 3:07 p.m. Ho said the Commission will hoar presentations and take 
public testimony on the Development of Regionnl Impact (ORI) Scoping application submitted by S-L Snacks, LLC that 
proposes redevelopment of its existing Cape Cod Potato Chip manufacturing facility and site at 60 Breed's Ii ill Road in 
I-lym111is. He :mid llw Coinniissin11 will consider whclher to adopl the drn.n written DR.I Scoping Decision imd approve !he 
project subject to the DRJ Scoping Decision. 

Allorney Eliza Cox, wilh the law firm of Nutter MeClennen & Fish representing the applicant, introduced the prnjecl team, 
thanked Commission staff and the Commission's Committee on Planning and Regulation for lheir support and 
recommendation. 

Beth Rul.lsehhoff:, Plant Moni1gor, wilh the use of PowerPoin1 slides provided a history on the C11pc Cod Potato Chip Factory 
and an overview of the existing sile, its current building, parking to tour, back lot, the tour/retail area, kitchen, and 
warehouse. She said their goal is to update the sile ,111d the current warehouse will be significantly expanded, She referred to 
plans showing the prnposed two-phased renovation and expnnsion project consisting orthree parts: Part I- two-story 
addition to upgrade tour and retail, of!icc space nnd employee welfare areas, approximntely I 0,930 squiwe feet; Part 2-

CCC Meeting July 6, 2011 Page 1 



expand existing warehouse with an approximotely I 0,050 squnre fool-nddi(ion; r1nd Part 3-internal renovations to upgrade 
the kitchen equipment, restore walls, ceilings, and floors. Ms. Rueschhoffsaid the Plant has been recognized for 
ir-nplemcnting sustainable production measures and suid S-L Snacks received a Sustainability Excellence in Manufacturing 
Award in 2015 for its Recycling Programs and in 20 I 6 for wastewater treatment. She described project benefits as 
enhancement to visitor experience, site design, public and employee safety, utilities will be more ef'l1cient with nanm1t gas, 
the improved layout will reduce the Amount of water rcquit·cd to complete Stmitation nnd now equipment is expected to 
reduce food waste. 

Jeff Ribeiro, Regulatory Officer at the Commis~ion, si:iid the Town ofB11rnstable sent 1:1 letter to the Commission saying that 
the proposed project is consistent with its local bylaws. He provided a procedural history and gave an overview of the pr·ojeet 
and said the applicant is proposing redcvcloprnc.mt of the existing 5,63-uere manufacturing facility site with the demolition of 
the existing 3,300 square foot visitor tour area and office space, reconstructio11 of the visitor tour area and office space with 11 

I 0,930 squr1re foot addition, the relocation 1:1nd expansion of the existing loading nnd warehouse spaces including a I 0,050 
square foot addition and associated site improvements including pedcstrlon conncctio11s from tho existing pal'king areas and 
revised landscaping. I le explained the tindlngs in the draft decision in Regional Policy Plan (R PP) i~sue areos for lr111d use, 
eco11omic development, water resour·ces, nalur·,tl resources, t.ransportf1tion, wast!;) rmmagcment, nffordablc housing, and 
heritage preservation/community character. He said based on the findings the Commission 11t1ds that the project us described 
in the dran written dccision docs not involve substantial deviation from the minimum performance standards of the RPP, 
does not have significant iinpacl upo,1 the purposes !Hid v.ilucs in Section One ofthu Cupe Cod Commission Act, and does 
not require further DRI review and that the applicant may proceed with local permitting for· the pr·oject without further DR! 
,·evicw subject lo the condit.ion~ in the draft decision, Mr. Ribeiro provided an overview of the conditions set out in the draft 
written decision. 

Glizabeth Jenkins, Planner with the Town of Barnstable Orowth Management, said the iown has made a finding that tho 
proposed project is consistent wilh its Local Comprehensive Pinn and local bylaws. She said lhe Town of Bnrnstable 
supports the project. 

Ellzabeih Taylor moved to close the public hearing and Jackie Etsten seconded tho motion. A vote called on the motion 
passed with a unanimous vote, 

Len Short moved to t1dopl the draft DR1 Scoping decision and approve the project subject to the conditions in said decision. 
Richard Roy seconded the motion. A vote called on the motion passed with 11 unanimous vote. 

• GREENSIDE OFFICE PARK #LR16021 
ChaiJ Harold Mitchell opened the public hearing at 3:30 p.111. J le said the Commission will hear presentations and take 
public testimony on the Limited Dcvclop111cnt ofRcgionul fmp1:1ct (DR.I) application for the Grcenside Office Park 
redevelopment project submitted by J. Bruce MacGregor, Trustee, Island Sun Nominee Trust, that proposes demolition or the 
existing building and structures al IO Attucks Lane in Hyannis and construction of two office buildings together with 
associated site improvements. I le said the project was p1·eviously limited ii, scope io the Rcgionol Policy Pion tir cf! of 
Transportation Goal 'l'R I by a DR I Scoping decision on February 7, 2017. lie said the Commission wil I consider whether to 
udopt the droll written Uniilcd ORI Occisio11 a11d approve the project subject to conditions set out in the draft decision. 

Al(orne;:y EliZii C~>x, wit.I, the h1w firm Nuilcr McClcnncn & Fish representing the applicant, introduced the project team, 
With the uso of PowerPoi11L slides, she described tho cxistir1g site ,incl conditions .ind suid there arc two curb-cuts- 11 full 
access curb-cut onto /\ttucks Lane and a right in/right out curb-cut located on Roule 132; there is an on-site well and septic 
system; it is ;,.()nccl llighway Business; the site is occupied by two businesses Cupe Cod Trniler Storngc and Sun 
Transpm·tation/Jsland Sun Delivery; and the site has five storage tanks and two underground diesel fuel storage !finks. She 
said there arc fuel pumping stations on-site and all tanks will be removed. Sho said the applicant has a 99-year lease and the 
land is now owned by the Town of Barnstable. Attorney Cox snicl the proposed redevelopment project consists of removing 
the existing building, outdoor uses, storage tanks and septic system and constructing two professional office buildings 
including associated site improvemen(s ond o londscope pion. She soid the project li!LS hecn prcvi()IJSly limited in scope to tho 
Regional Policy Plan issue area ofTranspo1iation Safely by a DRI Scoping Decision dated Februtiry 7, 2017 and appr'Ovecl by 
the Comm i!:sion 's Cmnmiliec on PJH1111 i ng ond Regu lulion, She :,;,id project benefits include relocation of Route I 32 right· 
in/right-out curb-cul as an improvement, mitigation mcasul'cs proposocl at six intersections, sidewalk co11ncctiort pl'Oposed lo 
ful urc Si(l(;)wulk filong A iil>cl<s Lane, cl i111 irrnlitin of large lrnek/lrni !er traffic und lhc upplicant has agreed to a Transportation 
Denurnd Management (TOM) pl'og,·am. She said the p1·ojec1 meets the rni11irnu11, pcrfor,nu,1cc shr11durds under O0tll TR! for 

CCC Meet ing July 6, 2017 Page 2 



Safety; thel'C is ll'emendous benefits act'oss all resource areas- community character/aesthetics into Hyannis Gateway, 
environmental, transportation/safety, economic; and it's consistent with Barnstable's vision and zoning. 

Jon ldman, Chief Regulatory Officer at the Commission, said with the substantial improvements on-site, the Commission's 
Committee on Planning and Regulation voted to limit the scope of review to Trnnsporttttion Safety Goal TR1. He st~id the 
number of trips did not warrant keeping all transpol'tation goals in the review. I le said after review of the safety analysis, the 
Commission's tl'ansportation staff suggest sig11age was appropriate for mitigation measures for this project. lie said 1he 
Limited DRl project contains nll lbe findings for approval oh DRI fll1d the Town ofBamstablc sent a letter saying thu 
project is consistent with its Local Comp,·ehensive Plan and local bylaws. 

Eli"obeth Jcnkius, Ph1Mer with the Town ofBa,·nstable Growth Management, said the proposed project is consistent with the 
town's Local Comprehensive Plan and local bylaws. She said the Town of Barnstable supports the project. 

Jack McCormack said it's a great project and it's removing all the storage tonks. 

Len Shor1 moved to close the public hearing and Roger· Putnam seconded the motion. A vote called on the motion passed 
with a unanimous vote. 

Jack McCormack moved to adopt the draft Limited DRI Decisio11 and approve the project subject to the conditions in said 
decision. Roydcn Richardson seconded the motion. A vote called on tho motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

• DOLLAR GENERAL, EASTHAM #DR17013 
Chair I larold Mitchell opened the public meeting at 3:45 p.m. I le said the Commission will hear presentations and considet· 
whcthc1· to accept the Discretionary Referral submitted by tho l:lastham Board of Selectmen for review as a Development of 
Regionul lmpuct (DRI) uncle!' the Regiom1I Polley PJf111 issues areas or land use, eeoMmic development, water resources, 
transportation and heritage prnservation/community character. I le saicl the Discretionary Referral involves tho proposal by 
Lisciotli DovGlopmont/Easthum DG, LLC to develop im approximately 9,100 sqmirc foot Dollar Genorfll retuil store at 4615 
State Highway, Eastham. 

Jon ldman, ChiefReguluto1y Officer al the Commission, said the matter before the Commission is a Discretionary Referral 
from the Eastham Board of Selectmen and today the Commission will consider whether to accept the Discretionary Referral 
for DRf review. J-10 said the Commission received i 5 letters opposing the project'. He said Route 6 is the main roudwny for 
the project. He said if the Commission accepts the 1,roject fo1· ORI review For heritage pt'eservation/communily character 
there would be opportunities for community design and if accepted for transportation thern would be an opportunity for a full 
tnmsport11tion st.udy. He said the Town ofEastlrnm hiis asked for DRl review in the Regiomd Policy Phm issue ureas of lund 
use, economic development, water resources, transportation and he,·itage ,,reservation/community character. fie said 
Commission staff feels it would be appropriate for the Commission to accept the project for DRl review in the issue areas 
that the town has requested. 

Chair I larokl Mitchell left the meeting at 3:47 p.111. nnd Vice-chair Jack McCormack said he would be Chi1iring the meeting. 

Pm1l Lagg, Eastham Town Planner, said he is here to support the Town of Eastham's IJiscretionary Reform I for IJRI review 
tiflhe Dollar Gencn1I project. Hu Sfli.d i11 the past yeflr there hns hec,, H 101 ()f nctivity in new development in Eastham nnd the 
tow11 !eels th:tt this nctivity hns been coming on at a rapid rato. I le roforr·cd 10 criteria in Section Ono of tho Cnpe Cod 
Commission Act and said the project is located in a public water supply system, lhcre arc two Chi1pter 408 ho11si11g projecWi 
in close proximity to this area, and the tvw11 feels the pl'qject will have regio11al impacts. I le said the physical size ofthc 
project is 9, I 00 square feet (sl) ofre tail which is under I 0,000 sf but the town fools it's a largo project that warrnnts a close 
look tlu-ough DRJ review. Hu suid the town has concurn~ ubout pedestrian a11d vehicle lranic, this area serves us the town's 
main street, the town feels the project would involve major CLtrb•cuts and with cars moving in and out, this would warrant the 
Commission looking nt this further. He suid none of the other new projects warrant changes in the roadway. He said having 
this project reviewed as a DRl would help the town to look at this mol'e closely and be an opportunity to look at traffic safety. 
I le said in terms of economic clcvclop111cnt, the town feels it will have impacts on local busincsscs/relnil imd this also needs 
to be IMkc<I at closely. Mr, Lagg said land use challenges have come on fast wilh all the new activity in Eastham and the 
Commission could help with this. He said the town feels the proposal warrants OHl rcvlew 1md hopes the Commlssion will 
considur 11ceepling the Diserelk>nory Referral for ORI review, 

CCC Meeting July 6, 2017 



Martin McDonald, Selectman Town ofEaslham, said he is here today to ask for help from the Commission. ! le said the 
Board of Selectmen were unanimous in sending the Discretionary Referral to the Commission. He said Eastham is the 
gateway to the outer Cape, Eastham is very proud to get 11 water system but the consequences are more development uncl they 
are concerned about what will happen with other lots being developed. I le said their objective was to keep development off 
Rou~c 6. He said in 20 yctirs they have had perhaps only two or three new buildings and lhcn suddenly there has been a lot of 
potential development and they have concerns nbout odditional development, I-le said traf(ic is already bad, there arc t\ lol of 
accidents on Route 6 and where Dollar General is being proposed, there will be a left-hand turn. ! le said the Eastham Board 
of Selectmen looked ut their objectives to come up with a slrntegic plan for the town, Dollar General is their fast application 
and they want to look at this closely. I le said the town is considel'ing a moratorium on development so that the tow11 con 
begin reviewing Bnstham's zoning. He said there is a lot going on and the town wants to handle this before it gets out of 
control; he said the town does not wont strip development. 

Attorney Sarah Turflno-Flores, with the law firm Nutter McClcnnen & Fish representing the opplicflnt, said she would ask the 
Commission to decline taking jurisdiction at th is lime. She said U1ere hasn 'l been an opportunity tor· a dialogue with the 
town, the applicant was not given notice of the meeting in Eastham, and they did not have an opportunity to meet with the 
planning board. She said only when there i~ the orpoi'lunity for a dialc,gue with the town will they know if there will be 
impacts from the pr~jcct and said they believe this is premature. She said the project is consistent with Eastham's zoning in 
that urctl. She :mid ii.sues can be reviewed al lhe local level and the Commission has agreed to provide technical assistance at 
the local level. She said until they speak with the town and hear from the public, they feel this request is premature. She said 
it should go tlu·ough a local hearing process first and then come to the Commission if it needs to. She asked that the 
Commission decline Eastham's Discretionary Referral. 

Royden Richordson said he commends the Town offaistham for nsking the Commission to proceed this w11y. He said 
conversation with the Commission needs lo be at the beginning not at the end. I-le said Commission staff will still be 
available and it will give organization to tho discussi.on. He said he supports the town's Discretionary Referral. 

Miclmol Skelley inquired about lho state's transportation commission, Steve Tupper, Transportation Planner at the 
Conunission, said Roule 6 is owned by the Massachusetts Department ofTrnnsportation so the applicant would need to get a 
permit. Michael Skelley said there are also concerns in Chatham with development because of sewers but Chatham takes 
care of Chatham. He said Eastham needs to handle this at tbe local level. He said Eastham can ask the Commission for 
consultation but they need to make their own decisions, 8ostlrnm needs to .find its own way to govern themselves, and they 
are coming to the Commission because they can't make their own decision. 

Dick Conron asked tor clarification reg01·ding technical assistance by the Conm1isHi01\ ve1·iius a DRI review 1111d nsl<ed if 
technical ass ism nee would be less comprehensive. Jon Id man said the character of advice might be different and DRJ review 
would be more Uum mere advice. Dick Com·on asked from a consulting point of view would tcchnic!ll assistm1cc be less than 
with ORI review. Jon ldman said a DRI review would be more i11 depth. 

Eli1.abeth Ta.>-lor said towns do have lhc ability to send Discretionary Referrals lo the Commission and since they h.ive that 
ability, the Commission should help when asked. She said it's incumbent upon the Commission to accept the Discretionary 
Referral. 

Joy Brookshire said the project is very controversial and no one in Eastham is neutral on this. She said the Commission has 
alwoys been 11eutr·a I and l flh c Commission accepts the Oiscretior111ry Rell::rral, ii wi II look closely at the project. She said the 
Commission should help towns when it's requested. 

Jackie Etslen said Eastham is a very small town with limited rosotu·ces. She said there could be impacts to a major roadway 
and tho town needs the help. 

Brnest Virgilio said he agrees with the comments by the applicant's attorney. I le said it's the town's responsibility to handle 
this locally a~ the first step. 

Roger .Pul11t1m s,iid he feels strongly lhnt !he town needs to be fully involved, this should go through the local process with 
the town lirst and only come to the Commission a fl.er it goes through the town. 

Jack McCormack said the Commission is n l'Cgioirnl agency a11d perhaps ihe project should he looked flt hy the Commissi<lll. 

CCC Meeting July 6, 2017 Page 4 



Royden Richardson said this is the first step for the town putting it before the Commission from the beginning. I le said he 
suppol'ts the 1own ftnd the Commission should uccepl the town's request. 

Paul Niedzwiecki said the Commission's responsibility is described in the Commission Act and the Commission is here to 
help when a town needs assistance. He said the standards In the Corr11nlssion's Regionul Policy Pltm arc different from a 
town's standards. He said sometimes the Commission is asked to consider a Discretionary Rcfern:11 when it's too hHe. 

Paul Lagg said locally the project would require a specifil pcnnil and site plan review. He said the rcgultUory process has 
started and the applicant is scheduled to appear before the planning board on July 19. He said the applicant was invited to the 
town's June 2 I" session, they were told about a pending Discretionary Referral, and tbc upplicant chose not to attend. He 
said he hopes the Commissiot1 will accept the Discretionary ReferraL 

Jack McCormack said he has seen a lot of projecls come in under I 0,000 sf and believes this type of project could h1:1vc 
regional impacts. He said the Commission should accept the Discretionary Refe11•al. 

Vice-chair Jack McCormack asked for a motion to find th~t the project is likely to create regional impacts and present~ 
concerns listc.:d in Section 12(b) of the Cape Cod Co111111ission Act including impact on existing capital facilities, the amount 
of traffic it would produce :uid orhcr focrors as tcslificd today by the Town offa1stho11, pt1blic ofliciuls, and accept the 
Discretionary Referral from the Town of Eastlrnm for Development of Regional Impact (DRJ) review in the Regional Policy 
Plan (R PP) issue an::us of land use, economic development, water resources, transportation and heritage 
preservation/community character. 

The motion was moved by Jackie Etstcn and seconded by Joy B1·ookshire. With 12 members voting, the Commission voted 
to accept tho Discretionary Referral from the Town of Eastham for DRI review in said RPP issue areas by a roll call vote 
with 9 votes in fovor and 3 votes opposed: Royde,; Richardson-yes; Richard Conron-ycsi 81izabeth Taylor-yes; Michael 
Skelley-no; Richard Roy-yes; Joy Brookshire-yes; Jackie Etsten-yes; Ernest Virgilio-no; Le11 Sho1t-ycs; Roger Putnam-no; 
Jack McConi,ock-ycs; Pnd David Weeden-yes. 

• NOTICE OF ORI WIT HDRAWAL: Eco-Site, LLC Wi reless Communication Tower #TR17003 
Michele White, Regulatory Officer at the Commission, said the Eco-Site, LLC's proposed eonstruclion ofa t35-fool wireless 
communications monopole at 145 Route 130 in Sandwich was referred to the Cape Cod Commission as a mandatory 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) by the Town of Simdwich on Febniary 28, 2017. She said the applicant has now 
withdrawn its local permit applications without prejudice, such withdrawal has been confirmed by Tow11 of Sandwich 
officials, and thG project has, accordingly, been withdrawn from DRJ review. 

• NEW BUSINESS 
Topir.:s ,wt r<tr1so1111bly 1111titip11f<td by lh <t Chair more lh1111 48 hour:,· before the 111e<tt/11g. 

A motion wns made to acljoiu-n ut '1:40 p.111. The motion wc1s seconded 1md voted um111imously. 

List of Documents Used/Presented at the July 6, 2017 Commission Meeting 

Minutes of the June 8, 2017 Commission Meeting. 
I landout material: July 6, 20 17 Commission meeting agenda. 
Handout 111atcrial: Cape Cod Potato Chip Facto1y Draft DKI Scoping Occision. 
Hondoul material: r.,·ecnsi<le Office Park Drnfl Lirnitt:cl DRI Dt:cision. 
M11tcri11I l'rcscntcd: Capo Cod Potato Chip Factory JJowerPoint prepared and presented by the /\pplicnnt. 
Mflicrinl Prcsclilecl: G1·ccn8ide Office P~11·k PowcrPoiiH prcpurc<I ,111(1 presented by Eliw Cox. 

CCC Meeting July 6, 2017 Pages 


